
" (c) Requests the Secretary-General to as­
sume the responsibility contemplated in para­
graph 2 of section B of part VI of the report of 
the Commission/ for drawing to the attention of 
the Commission and its Sub-Commission on 
Employment and Economic Stability any special 
economic situations which should receive spe­
cial consideration and, in particular, such devel­
opments as would, in the opinion of the Secre­
tary-General, justify the calling of a session of 
the Economic and Employment Commission in 
accordance with its rules 'of procedure. 

"2. In regard' to the achievement. of higher 
standards of living, full employment and 
conditions of economic and social progress 
and development, 

u Instructs the Economic and Employment 
Commission, taking into account the responsibil­
ities of various international agencies, to investi­
gate and report as early as practicable upon the 
measures necessary to such organization of world 
resources of man-power and ·materials as will 
promote higher world standards of living, full 
employment, and conditions of economic ·and 
social progress and development, while at the 
same time safeguarding the living standards of 
individual nations." 

Mr. Nash pointed out that part I of the 
resolution was entirely consistent with the recom­
mendation made in the report of the Economic 
and Employment Commission; part I, section 
(b) and (c) were designed to ensure adequate 
means of implementing the work of the Commis­
sion. Part II was directly· based on principles 
laid down in Articles 55 and 56 of the United 
Nations Charter as well as in discussions on the 
subject by the ILO and the International Mone­
tary Fun~; it aimed at fulfilling· a purpose that 
was fundamental to most of the work of the 
Economic and Social Council, namely, raising 

, standards of living throughout the world, par­
ticularly in those countries where the need was 
greatest, and thus contributing to the hope of all 
peoples to live in peace and to en joy the rights 
of free human beings. 

The meeting rose at 1.30 p.m. 

FlfTY.,SEVENTH MEETING 
Held.at Lake Success, New York, 

on Thursday, 6 March I947, at 3 p.m: 

Preside_.nt: Sir Ramaswami M UDALIAR (India). 

13. Continuation of the discussion of the 
report of the Economic and Employ­
ment Commission 

Mr. PEREZ CISNEROS (Cuba) associated him­
self with the thanks addressed to the authors of 
the report of the Economic and Employment 
Commission. 

1 Supplement No. 4, page 11. 

"c) Prie le Secretaire general de se charger, 
comrne il est prevu au paragraphe 2 de Ia 
section B de Ia sixieme partie du rapport de Ia 
Commission\ de signaler a l'attent·ion de Ia Com­
mission· et de sa Sous-Commission de l'emploi 
et de Ia stabilite economique toute situation eco­
nomiqu'e particuliere qui devrait faire !'objet 
d'un examen special, et notamment les progres 
qui, de !'avis du Secretaire general, justifieraient 
Ia convocation d'une session de Ia Commission 
des questions economiques et de l'emploi, con'­
formement a son reglement interieur. 

"2. En ce qui concerne le relevement des 
niveaux de vie, le plein emploi et les con­
ditions de progres et de developpement dans 
l'ordre economique et social 

"Invite Ia Commission des questions eco­
nomiques et de l'emploi, compte tenu des fonc­
tions incombant aux diverses institutions inter­
nationales, a entreprendre des etudes et a faire 
rapport aussi rapidement que possible, . su:r; les 
mesures necessaires pour organiser les ressourccrs 

. mondiales de main-d'ceuvre et de materiaux, de 
maniere a favoriser le relevement des niveaux 
de vie, le plein emploi et des conditions ~e 
progres et de developpement dans l'ordre eco­
nomique et social, tout en sauyegardant les 
niveaux de vie des divers pays." 

M. Nash fait remarquer que Ia premiere partie 
de Ia resolution est entierement conforme a Ia 
recommandation qui figure au rapport· de Ia 
Commission des questions economiques et de 
l'emploi; les paragraphes b) et c) de cette 
premiere partie se proposent d' assurer les moyens 
appropries de donner suite aux travaux de 
Ia Commission. La deuxieme partie s'inspire 
directement des principes formules aux Articles 
55 et 56 de la Charte des Nations Unies, ainsi 
que des discussions qui ont eu lieu a ce sujet 
au sein de l'OIT et du Fonds monetaire inter­
national; elle vise a atteindre un objectif qui est 
q'une importance fondamentale pour Ia plus 
grande partie des travaux du Conseil economique 
et social, a savoir, le relevement des niveaux de 
vie dans toutes les parties du monde, et en par­
ticulier dans les pays ou les besoins sont les plus 
grands; elle contribuera ainsi a realiser I' espoir 
de tous les peuples qui souhaitent de vivre en 
paix et de beneficier des droits d'hommes libres. 

La seance est levee a 13 h. 30. 

CINQUANTE-SEPTIEME SEANCE 
T enue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le jeudi 6 mars 1947, a 15 heures. 

President: Sir Ramaswami M uoALIAR (In de). 

13. Suite de Ia discussion su~ le rapport 
de Ia Commission des questions 
economiques et de l'emploi 

M. PEREZ CISNEROS (Cuba) s'associe aux 
remerciements adresses aux auteurs du rapport 
de Ia Commission des questions economiques et 
de l'emploi. 

1 Supplement No 4, page 11. 

40 



The_ Commission had decided that the selec­
tion of members of the contemplated sub-com­
missions on employment and economic stability, 
and on economic development should be de­
ferred until the next session. As a member of the 
Commission, he had approved that decision, but 
as a member of the Economic and Social Coun­
cil he wished to stress that his Government was 
anxious for those two sub-commissions to be 
established without delay. 

The members of the S!Jb-commissions should 
be qualified experts, selected in accordance with · 
the pr!nciple of equitable geographical represen­
tation. He hoped that, in view of the importance 
of questions to be dealt with by the sub-commis­
sions; members would not be represented ·by 
alternates. 

He also hoped· that the sub-commissions would 
make concrete proposals capable of being ap­
plied immediately, and would not confine them­
selves to drawing up new reports. 

His delegation shared the views expressed by 
the representative of India' that economic com­
missions for Europe and for the Far East should 
be established sir~mltaneously. 

He hoped that the Council would give due 
attention to other war-devastated areas and also 
to countries whose economy had undergone great 
upheavals, although not having suffered directly 
from military operations. 

Mr. MoRozov (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) pointed out the importance of the prob­
lems considered by the Economic and "Employ­
ment Commission, referring in particular to the 

_·Commission's recommendations regarding the 
principles which were to govern the activities of 
the Economic Commission for Europe. 

The report contained somewhat obscure defi­
nitiOns of the tasks of the Commissio~ and its 
sub-commissions. These tasks involved two prin­
ciples: on the one hand, assistance had to be 
given ·to economically or industrially under­
developed countries and, on ·the other hand, 
such assistance should not be used by the 
countries giving it to obtain certain political 
advantages. ' 

He thought that the Commission had fre­
quently tended to, disregard those principles in 
its recommendations. The mandate given to the 
Sub-Commission on Economic Development was 
to discuss the preparation of an international 
code re~ating to foreign investments with the 
view t<;> guaranteeing the economic and social 
interests of those countries to which capital was 
directed. The Sub-Commission should study that 
question again for it had nothing to do with the 
general problem of assistance to economically 
under-developed countries. 

41 

II rappelle que Ia Commission a decide de 
renvoyer a sa prochaine session le choix des 
membres de Ia sons-commission de I'emploi et 
de Ia stabilite economique et de Ia sons-commis­
sion du developpement economique, "dont elle 
a envisage I'etablissement. En tant que membre 
de Ia Commission, M. Perez Cisneros a approuve 
cette decision; cependant, en tant que membre 
du Conseil economique et social, il tient a sou­
ligner !'importance que son Gouvernement at­
tache a Ia constitution rapide de ces deux sous-. . ' . commissiOns. 

II estime que les membres des sons-commis­
sions doivent etre des experts qualifies, choisis en 
tenant compte du principe d'une representation 
geographique equitable, et ajoute qu'il esper~ 
qu'en raison de !'importance des questions dont 
les sons-commissions auront a s'occuper, leurs 
membres ne seront. pas autorises a se faire rem­
placer par des suppleants. 

II espere egalement que ces sons-commissions 
feront des propositions .concretes, susceptibles 
d'application immediate, et qu'elles ne se bor­
neront pas a: preparer de nouveaux rapports. 

M. Perez Cisneros declare que sa deleg~tion 
partage les vues exprimees par le representant 
de l'Inde au sujet de Ia rrecessite de constituer 
simultanement les Commissions economiques 
pour l'Europe et pour l'Extreme-OI'ient. 

II ajoute qu'il espere que le Conseil donnera 
'toute I' attention necessaire aux autres regions 
devastees par la guerre, ainsi qu'aux pays q~i, 
bien que n'ayant pas souffert directement des 
operations de guerre, ont vu leur economie forte­
ment ebranlee du fait de celle-ci. 

M. MoRozov (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) signale I' importance des 
problemes etudies par la Commission des que$~ 
tions economiques et de l'emploi. II signale plus 
particulierement !'importance des recommanda­
tions de la Commission concernant les principes 
qui doivent diriger l'activite de la Commission 
economique pour l'Europe. 

Apres avoir releve que le rapport contient 
des definitions peu claires des taches de Ia Com­
mission et de ses sons-commissions, il declare que 
ces taches sont de deux sorte3: d'une part, il 
faut porter secours aux pays economiquement ou 
industriellement peu developpes et, d'autre part, 
il faut faire en sorte que cette aide ne soit pas 
utilisee, par les pays qui Ia fournissent, pour en 
tirer certains avantages politiques. 

M. Morozov estime que la Commission a 
souvent eu tendance, dans ses recommandations, 
a s' ecarter de ces principes. La So us-Commission 
du developpement economique etait chargee de 
discuter la preparation d'un c_ode international 
des placements de capitaux a I' et~anger en vue 
de garantir les interets economiques et sociaux 
des pays ou sont investis ces capitaux. La Sons­
Commission devrait reprendre l'etude de cette 
question qui n'a aucun rapport avec le probleme 
general de I'aide aux pays dont l'economie est 
insuffisamment developpee. 



He would refrain from making any comments 
on the recommendations on the resolution re­
garding industrial development, submitted by the 
Preparatory Committee of th~ United Nations 
Conference on Trade and Employment, since his 
delegation had not taken part in the work of the 
Preparatory Committee: Nevertheless, he would 
say· that it was not within the competence of 
specialized agencies to make recommendations 
on econo;mic development. 

With regar.d. to the recommendations in the 
field of ecoiwmic stability and full. employment, 
the Commissi~n should not have given such de­
tailed instructions to the Sub-Commission on 
Economic Development, in view of the fact that 
the latter's. terms of reference had been clearly 
defined. by the Economic and Social Council. 

He disagreed with the Council's decision taken 
at its third session;1 members of the sub-commis­
sions should be selected on the principle of their 
appointment as representatives of countries and 
not of their personal competence. Jf the Council 
had adopted that principle, the sub-commissions 
would already be in existence. He reserved the 
right to make some further remarks when the 

- substance of the report was discussed again by 
the Commission. 

Mr. AReA PARRO (Peru) congratulated the 
Economic and Employment Commission on the 
work it had accomplished and stated, prior to 

, discussing the report, that great importance had 
rightly been attached to the · principle of full 
employment in the course of the debate. 

To his regret, he could not agree with the 
representative of' New Zealand, who had said 
tha:t it was p<;>intless to dwell on the discussion 
of the economic theory on which the principle of 
full employment was based. The qu

1
estion was 

not only to give employment to everyone, but to 
raise the standard of living of the workers. For 
example, at one time the sugar industry in 
America had developed as a result of a system of 
slavery; but when, later, the wor.kers were given 
their liberty they found that liberty alone was 

_ not sufficient to improve living conditions. 

In modern times the State should avoid the 
exploitation of workers, and the United Nations 
should act in the same way internationally by 
studying working conditions which might be ac­
ceptable. to all and which were worthy of 
human beings. · 

It was 'unjust that working conditions should 
vary so greatly from one country to another; this 
inequality was due to the existence in each coun­
try of groups of people who clung to the prin­
ciple of free enterprise and thought of .nothing 
but their own interests. 

En ce qui' conce~ne les recommandations sur 
la resolution relative au developpement industriel 
presentee par la Commission preparatoire de la 
Conference des Nations Unies, sur le commerce 
et l'emploi, M. Moro·zov declare qu'il s'abstient 
de formuler des observations a leur sujet, etant 
donne que sa delegation n'a pas pris part aux 
travaux de la Commission preparatoire. II fait 
cependant remarquer qu'il n'appartient pas. aux 
institutions specialisees de faire des recommanda­
tions sur le developpement economique. 

Quant aux recommandations dans le domaine 
de la stabilite economique .et de l'emploi, il est 
d'avis que fa Commission n'aurait pas du donner 
des instructions aussi detaillees a la Sous-Com­
rnission du developpement economique, le man­
dat de celle-d ayant ete clairement defini par le 
Conseil economique et social. 

Enfin, le representant de l'URSS estime 'que, 
contrairement a ce que le Conseil avait decide 
au· cours de sa troisieme session\ le · choix des 
membres des sous-commissions devrait etre ef­
fectue. sur la base de ce principe qu'ils doivent 
etre nommes en tant que representants des pays, 
et non en raison de leurs qualites personnelles. 
II considere que si le Conseil avait adopte ce 
principe, les sous-commissions auraient deja ete 

I creees. M. Morozov se. reserve de presenter 
d'autres observations lorsque la Commission 
examinera a nou;eau le fond du rapport. 

M. AReA PARR6 (Perou) felicite la Com­
mission des questions economiques et de l'emploi 
pour le travail qu'elle a effectue; avant de passer 
a l'examen du rapport, il rappelle qu'au cours 
du debat, une grande importance a ete, a juste 
titre, accordee au principe du plein emploi. 

II regrette d'etre en desaccord avec le repre­
sentant ~e la Nouvelle-Zelande en ce qui con­
cerne sa declaration relative a l'inutilite de 
s'attarder a discuter sur quelle theorie econo­
mique est base le principe du plein emploi. 
II estime, en effet, qu'il ne s'agit pas seulement 
de donner du travail a tout le monde, mais 
qu'il faut elever le niveau de vie des travailleurs. 
II rappelle, a titre d'exemple, que l'industrie du 
sucre en Amerique s'est tout d'abord developpee 
grace au systeme de l'esclavage, puis, la li~erte 
ayant ete accordee aux travailleurs, ceux-ci se 

. sont aper'<us qu'elle n'etait pas suffisante pour 
ameliorer les conditions de vie. 

II souligne qu'actuelkment l'Etat doit eviter 
!'exploitation de~ travailleurs; sur le plan inter­
national, les Nations Unies doivent agir dans le 
meme sens, en etudiant des conditions de travail 
acceptables par tous et dignes d'etres humains. 

M. Area Parr6 estime injuste que les condi­
tions de travail soient si differentes d'un pays a 
l'autre, et il voit la 'raison d'une telle inegalite 
dans le fait qu'il existe dans chaque pays des 
groupements qui restent attaches au principe de 
la libre entreprise, et n'ont en vue que leurs 
propres interets. 

1 See Resolutions adopted by the Economic and Social 1 Voir les Resolutions adoptees par le Conseil econo-
Council during its third session, page 1. mique et social pendant sa troisieme session, page 1. 

42 



' For example, the countries of Latin Ameria 
were under-developed because their natural re­
source's had been used for the benefit of others 
and n'ot for their own profit. Rubber plantations 
had been transferred from one end of the world 
to another iD. order to install them in places . 
where labour was cheapest. Those errors should 
not be repeated. Competition carried out to the 
detriment of the living conditions of human 
beings should not be alJowed; on the other 
hand, honest competition in production by 
means of better methods and better equipment 
was to be advocated. 

Referring to the international code relating to 
foreign investments, to which allusion had been 
made in the report, he hoped 'that the sub-com­
mission would decide 'that it was those in need of 
foreign capital who required protection rather 
than those wishing to invest their capital. The 
sub-commission's terms of reference on this point 
should be widened. 

R~plying to the statement of the representa­
tive of New Zealand' regarding the high infant 
mortality rates in given countries where labour 
was cheap; he asked what use it was to have a 
high birth rate if the mortality rate was high 
also. He thougpt that re~ommendations of the 
Council op. social legislation ought to be taken . 
into consideration by individual countries. 

He supported the proposed establishment of 
the sub-commissions and urged that their work 
be co-ordinated.' 

In his opinion, help given to under-developed 
countries should not be considered as charity·; 
those countries would not accept charity even if 
it were dispensed by the United Nations on an 
international basis. At the same time, they were 
fully entitled to international co-operation for so 
far their under-developed condition was due to 
the fact that certain groups of nations had an 

· interest in maintaining existing conditions. Their 
right was all the stronger because those condi­
tions could not fail to have repercussions in the 
rest of the world, and the United Nations were 
concerneg with the world as a whole. 

As to the problem of international controls 
and allocations of commodities in short supply 
and the problem of surplus commodities in pros­
pect, which had both been postponed until the 
next session, he trusted that this postponement 
was due not to the fact that these questions were 
unimportant, but only to the lack of time. If the 
United Nations really wished to reconstruct the 
devastated areas and to. improve world condi­
tions, these controls should be considered as soon 
as possible. 

In Peru, the Incas for instance, had accom­
plished an enormous amount of work and had 
succeeded in giving employment to all, under a 

Citarlt en exemple Ie cas des pays de 1' Ame­
rique latine, il declare qu<:! si ces pays ne sont 
pas assez developpes, c'est parce que leurs res­
sources naturelles ont ete utilisees au benefice 
d'autrui, et non a leur propre profit. II ajoute 
que si les plantations de caoutchouc ont ete 
transportees d'un bout du monde a }'autre, c'est 
parce qu'on a voulu Ies installer Ia ou Ia main­
d'reuvre etait le meilleur marche. M. Area Parr6 
estime qu'il ne faut pas repeter ces erreurs. On 
ne doit pas admettre qu'une concurrence s'exei:ce 
aux depens du niveau et des conditions de vie 
d'etre humains; mais on doit, au contraire, 
defendre Ie principe d'une concurrence loyale 
dans Ie domaine de Ia productiop par Ie jeu du 
perfectionnement des methodes et de l'outillage. 

Se referant au code international des ·place­
ments de capitaux a l'etranger auquel Ie rapport 
fait allusion, le representant du Perou espere 
que Ia Sous-Commission decidera qu'il y ~ lieu 
de proteger ceux qui ont besoin de capitaux . 
etrangers plutot que ceux qui placent leurs 
capitaux a l'etranger. II estime que, sur ce point, 
le mandat de Ia Sous-Commission devra etre . 
etendu. 

Repondant a Ia declaration du representant de 
Ia Nouvelle-Zelande relative a'ux taux eleve de 
mortalite infantile dans certain~ pays ou Ia main­
d'reuvre est bon marche, M. Area Parr6 fait 
observer qu'il ne sert a rien d'avoir un taux ~e 
natalite eleve si le taux de mortalite est eleve, 
lui aussi. A son avis, tous les pays devraient tenir 
compte des recommandations du Conseil sur Ia 
legislation sociale. ' 

II appuie Ia suggestion de constittter des sous­
commissions, et insiste pour que le travail de 
celles-ci soit coordonne. 

II declare qu'.a son avis, toute aide donnee 
aux pays insuffisamment developpes ne doit pas 
etre envisagee comme une charite; ces pays n'en 
accepteraient pas, meme s'il agissait' d'une 
charite internationale donnee par l'entremise des 
Nations Unies. Cette aide, ces pays y ont droit 
car, s'ils sont dans cet etat de developpement 
insuffisant, c'est parce que certains groupements 
ont interet a maintenir les conditions existantes. 
Et leur droit est d'autant plus fort que de telles 
conditions ne peuvent manquer d'avoir leurs 
repercussions dans le reste du monde; or, !'Or­
ganisation des Nations Unies se preoccupe du · 
monde dans son ensemble. · 

En ce qui concerne Ia question du controle 
et de l.a repartition sur le plan international des 
marchandises dont Ia penurie se fait sentir, et le 
probleme des excedents eventuels qui, tous deux, 
ont ete renvoyes a Ia prochaine session de Ia 
Commission, M. Area Parr6 espere que le renvoi 
est du, non pas au peu d'importance ·de ces 
questions, mais uniquement au manque de temps. 
Si les Nations Unies veulent vraiment recons­
truire les regions devastees et ameliorer le 
monde, il faut etudier ce controle le plus rapide­
ment possible. 

I1 cite I'exemple des Incas qui ont realise au 
Perou d' enormes travaux et ont reussi a donner 
du travail a tous au moyen d'un systeme de 



system of land distribution which gave everyone 
his share. They had instinctively applied the 
principle of social security without any knowl­
edge of the theory. 

The world needed tools, machinery and mod­
ern equipment in order to produce. That equip­
ment should be distributed not by private organ­
izations or by powerful trusts, but under inter­
national control, at points where the need 
existed, irrespective of all political, racial or 
religious considerations. 

I 

He pointed out that certain countries, includ­
ing Latin American countries, had used all their 
production for the war effort in the past few 
years and needed replacements of equipment. 
This equipment should not now be allocated on 
a purely commercial basis, otherwise one might 
have a monopoly and the equipment would fall 
into the hands of those able to pay the highest 
prices. 

Finally, he said he attached special importance 
to the establishment of a control body for allocat­
ing commodities, and made it clear that in his 
opinion the term "commodities" 'should not ·ap­
ply .to consumer goods only, but should include 
tools, equipment and aU that was needed for the 
industry and economy of a country. 

Mr. NAsH (New Zealand) said that his state­
ment had been misinterpreted by the Peruvian 
representative. He too was a socialist and he was 
not in favour of individual free enterprise in 
economic matters, but advocated state control. 
His country had the lowest infant mortality rate 
and the longest life expectancy. The postal serv­
ice, railways, telegraphs, electricity and the Cen­
tral Bank were all state owned. Although the 
system of free enterprise as practised in the 
United States had greatly increased that coun­
try's productivity, the system of control as ap­
plied in New Zealand had given excellent results, 
for the mass of the population. 

Mr. MALIK (Lebanon) said his country was 
extremely interested in the prospects of economic 
development and had taken the initiative in pro­
posing a resolution to the General Assembly 
which had become item 28 of 'the Council's 
agenda. Lebanon had always considered that 
the term "development" should not be interp­
reted in a narrow, technical sense, but should 
a:lso inc,lude cultural and sociil development. 

He joined his voice to the tributes paid to the 
Economic and Employment Commission. He 
thought, however, it was contrary to the conclu­
sions of the report, that the sub-commission on 
economic development should be established 
forthwith; that the discussion of the· question of 
t~chnical advice to be given to Governments of 

distribution de la terre qui assurait a chacun sa 
part. Sans connaitre l'idee de securite sociale, 
ils en appliquaient instinctivement le principe. 

Actuellement, le monde a besoin d'oHtils, de 
machines et d' equipement moderne pour pro­
duire. II faut que cet equipement soit repaxti, 
non pas par des organisations privees ou par des 
trusts puissant~, mais par un organi&me de con­
trole international, la ou le besoin s'en fait sentir, 
independamment de toute consideration d' ordre 
politique, racial ou religieux. · 

Le representant du Perou signale particuliere­
ment le cas de certain pays, notamment des pays 
d' Amerique Ia tine, qui ont, au cours des der­
nieres annees, consacre toute leur production a 
l'effort de guerre, et qui ont besoin de remplacer 
leur equipement. Il ne faut pas que !'allocation 
de cet equipement soit pratiquee sur une base 
purement commerciale car il se creerait des 
monopoles et l'equipement irait a ceux qui 
peuvent payer le prix fort. 

En conclusion, M. Area Parr6 souligne !'im­
portance particuliere qu'il attache a !'institution 
d'un organe de controle de la repartition des 
marchandises en precisant qu'a son avis, le terme 
"marchandises" ne doit pas s'appliquer seule­
ment aux biens de consommation, mais doit 
comprendre les outils, l'equipement et tou,t ce 
dont un pays a besoin sur le plan economique 
et industriel. 

M. NAsH ( Nouvelle-Zelande) declare que 
son discours de la matinee a ete mal interprete 
par le representant du Perou; lui aussi est 
socialiste et est partisan non pas de !'initiative 
individuelle libre en matiere economique, mais 
d'un controle par l'Etat. Son pays est celui ou 
le taux de mortalite est le plus bas et la longevite 
la plus elevee. Les pastes, les chemins de fer, 
les telegraphes, les usines d'energie electrique, et 
la Banque centrale, sont propriete du Gouverne­
ment. Le representant de la Nouvelle-Zelande 
estime que si le regime de' libre entreprise pra­
tique aux Etats-Unis y a fortement accru la 
proauctivite, Ie regime de controle applique en 
Nouvelle-Zelande a donne d'excellents resultats 
pour la masse de la population. " 

M. MALIK ( Liban) rappelle que son pays est 
vivement interesse par les perspectives de de­
veloppement economique et qu'il a pris !'ini­
tiative de proposer a 1' Assemblee generale Ia 
resolution qui a amene }'inscription du point 28 
a l'ordre du jour de la presente session. Le Liban 
a toujours considere que le terme "developpe­
ment" ne devait pas etre pris dans un sens tech­
nique etroit, mais devait inclure egalement le 
developpement culture! et social. 

Le representant du Liban s'associe aux ex­
pressions de remerciement qui ant ete adressees 
a la Commission des-questions economiques ct 
de l'emploi. Il estime toutefois, contrairement 
aux conclusions du rapport, que la sous-com­
mission du devdoppement economique devrait 
etre constituee sans delai, la ·discussion des con-



Member States (item 28) could well be post­
poned, in accordance with the Chairman's 
decision. · 

He supported the remarks of the representa­
tive of India, but regretted that the report ·should 
convey the impression that development had 
been neglected for the sake of full employment 
and hence he thought it lacked balance. The two 
problems could , not be dissociated, as was evi­
denced by ar-ticle 10 of chapter IV of the draft 
charter of the International Trade Organiza­
tion, which affirmed that the industrial develop­
ment of under-developed countries would serve 
to increase production, raise the standard of 
living and strengthen the ties of international 
understanding. There seemed to be a conspiracy 
of silence on the problem of development. 

I 

He also thought that the report defended the 
principle of the econoniiC sovereignty of Member 
nations with excessive zeal and quoted part V 
(A) of the report in support of his argument. It 
was quite correct to give countries assurances 
that there would be no interference in their in­
ternal affairs, but the United Nations, having a 
world-wide responsibility for development, 
should not wait for the countries to act individu­
ally, but should take the initiative in that matter. 

' 

There were two types of States members of 
the Codncil: some were highly industrialized, 
had a dense population and were deeply con­
cerned with the problem of full employment; the 
others, backward from the industrial point of 
view and sparsely populated, were eager for 
economic development. The former were directly 
interested in the development of the latter. 

There were three reasons why development 
was as important as employment. In the first 
place, problems of development of the less devel­
oped countries were important for the sake of 
full employment itself. When the existing short­
age of commodities came to an end, full employ­
ment in the industrialized countries could not be 
maintained without an increase of world de­
mand, which presupposed a rise in the standard 
of living, that is to say, the development of back­
ward countries. The alternative would be a fresh 
economic crisis which might drag the whole 
world into chaos. 

Secondly, under-developed countries consti­
tuted tempting. morsels for exploitation and a 
threat to international peace and security, as, on 
account of their unexploited wealth, they repre­
sented choice pieces over which the industrialized 
countries were inclined to quarrel. ' 

Lastly, there could be no lasting international 
peace ~hile thousands of human beings had a 
low. standard of living and while they did not 
have a sufficient sense of real self-respect and 
equality with others. It was essential to restore 
this to the minds and souls of millions of people, 
for without the elimination of this sense of 

45 

sei.ls techniques a donner aux Gouvernements des 
Etats Membres (point 28) pouvant fort bien, 
comme l'a decide le President, etre differee. 

M. Malik approuve les observations faites par 
le representant de l'Inde. II regrette que le rap­
port donne !'impression de negliger le developpe­
ment au profit du plein. emploi et manque, a 
cet egard, d'equilibre. Ces deux problemes ne 
peuvent" etre dissocies, comme en temoigne !'ar­
ticle 10 du chapitre IV du projet de 'charte de 
!'Organisation internationale du commerce ou 
il est dit que le developpement industriel des pays 
insuffisamment developpes permettra d'augmen­
ter la production, d'ameliorer le niveau de vie 
et d'arriver a une meilleure comprehension in­
ternationale. II semble qu'une conspiration du 
silence s' etablisse sur le. probleme du developpe­
ment. 

Le representant du Liban estime egalement 
que ·le rapport defend avec un zele excessif le 
principe de la souverainete economique des 
nations Membres. II cite a ce propos le chapitre 
A de ra cinquieme partie du rapport. II est 
legitime d'assurer aux pays .que l'on n'inter­
viendra pas dans leurs affaires, mais !'Organisa­
tion des Nations Unies, qui a la responsabilite 
mondiale du developpement, ne devrait pas 
attendre que les pays agissent individuellernent. 
II lui appartient de prendre en cette matiere 
1' initiative. 

Les pays membres du Conseil, poursuit ,M. 
Malik, sont de deux sortes: les uns, foitement 
industrialises, ont une population dense et sont 
preocuppes par le probleme du plein emploi; les 
autres, arrieres au point de vue- industriel et 
faiblement peuples, aspirent au developpement 
economique. Les premiers de ces pays, affirme­
t-il, sont directement interesses au developpement 
des seconds. 

Le" developpement est aussi important/ que 
le plein emploi, ceci pour trois raisons. Tout 
d'abord, le developpement est important du 
point de vue meme du plein emploi. En effet, 
lorsqu'aura pris fin Ia penurie actuelle de pro­
duits, le plein emploi dans les pays industriels ne 
pourra etre maintenu que par !'augmentation 
de la demande mondiale, ce qui postule !'eleva­
tion du niveau de vie, c'est-a-dire le developpe­
ment des pays economiquement arrieres. L'alter­
native serait une nouvelle crise economique de 
nature a plonger le monde entier dans le chaos. 

D'autre part, les pays auieres constituent une 
proie tentante pour les exploiteurs et un danger 
pour la paix et Ia securite internationales car, 
en raison de leurs richesses inexploitees, ils repre­
sentent des morceaux de choix que les pays in­
dustrialises sont tentes de se disputer. 

Enfin, tant que des milliers d'etres humains 
auront un niveau de vie inferieur, tant qu'ils 
n'auront pas le sentiment de leur dignite et de 
leur egalite avec les autres, la paix du monde 
ne pourra etre assuree de fa<_;on durable. II est 
indispel}-sable d'imprimer cela dans l'e5prit et 
l'ame de millions d'etre car, sans !'elimination de 



inferiority and negativity there could be no 
real peace. 

He thus urged the Council not to subordinate 
the policy of development to that of full employ­
ment, and not to leave the responsibility for the 
development of certain countries entirely in the 
hands of their Governments, for it was also a 
questiof!. of United Nations responsibility. The 
Council should make the Governments and peo­
ples of insufficiently developed countries aware of 
their responsibilities and awaken them to the im­
portance of self-development. He fully endorsed 
the statement of the represep.tative of the Union 
of Soviet Socialist Republics that any such guid­
ance and assistance should never entail political 
advantages to the more developed countries. 

In conclusion, he referred to the gravity of the 
situation in 'die Middle East, which called for 
if!lmediate measures; he would shortly submit ~ 
draft resolution for the establishment of an eco­
nomic commission for the Middle East on the 
lines of those now being established for Europe 
and Asia and the Far East. 

Mr. TARHAN (Turkey) said that his delega­
tion had studied the Commission's noteworthy 
report with the greatest care and, in general, ap­
proved its conclusions. Economic progress could 

. only be achieved by confident co-operation be­
tween the Council, its commission1?, the special­
ized agencies and the Secretariat. The latter, in 
particular, should be provided with the appro­
priate ,means to fulfil its task. The Turkish Gov­
ernment was prepared to co-operate in this work. 

The code relating to foreign investments was 
particularly important. In the past, certain coun­
tries had ~xperienced great disappointment as a 
result of unregulated international investments. 

- He asked the Council to re.commend that spe­
cial attention should be given to the question of 
under-developed countries. Prosperity, high 
standards of living and full employment could 
only be attained if the level of demand were 
raised to that of potential production. 

Mr. CoLBJOERNSEN (Norway) said that the 
problem confronting the Council was not that of 
giving advice to ,Governments - they were 
swamped with advice already-but of formulat­
ing judicio

1
us and practical counsels. He hoped 

that pending the establishment of the two sub­
commissions, qualified experts wol:Ild be selected, 
that the sub-commissions would not take over 
the work- of the Commission and that· they 
would be established in the very near future. 

He denied the charge that the problem of de­
velopment had suffered from a conspiracy. of 
silence. The Secretary-General's report on the 
Food and Agriculture Organization1 said that 

ce sentiment d'inferiorite, il .ne peut pas y a voir 
de paix veritable. 

Le representant du Liban presse le Conseil 
de ne pas subordonner la politique du developpe­
ment a celle du plein emploi, et de ne pas laisser 
la responsabilite du , developpement de certains 
pays uniquement entre les mains des Gouveme­

,ments de ces pays car la responsabilite de !'Or-
ganisation des Nations Unies est en jeu, elle 
aussi. Le Conseil doit eveiller les Gouvernements 
et les peuples des pays insuffisamment mis en 
valeur a leurs responsabilites et leur faire com­
prendre -l'importance de travailler a leur propre 
developpement. M. Malik souscrit entierement 
a Ia declaration du representant de !'Union des 
Republiques socialistes sovietiques qui a dit que 
les pays qui guideront et aideront les autres a 
se developper ne dev.raient jamais en retirer 
aucun avantage politique. 

En terminant, le representant du Liban sou­
ligne la gravite de Ia situation dans le Moyen­
Orient ou des mesures immediates sont indispen­
sables, et annonce qu'il soumettra sous peu un 
projet de resolution tendant a Ia creation d'une 
commission economique pour le Moyen-Orient, 
du genre de celles en vole de creation pour 
!'Europe et !'Extreme-Orient. 

.M. TARHAN (Turquie) declare que sa delega­
tion a etudie avec le plus grand soin le rapport 
remarquable de la Commission, dont elle ap­
prouve d'une fa~on generale les conclusions. Le 
progres ecoriomique sera, dit-il, le resultat d'une 
cooperation confiante entre le Conseil, ses com-• 
missions, les institutions specialisees, et le Secre­
tariat. II conviendra notamment de pourvoir ce 
dernier des moyens appropries. Le Parlement 
turc est pret a s'associer a cette reuvre. 

Le representant de la Turquie souligne l'im..: 
portance du code d'investissements internatio­
naux. Dans le passe, explique-t-il, certains pays 
oqt connu de serieux mecomptes resultant du 
desordre qui existait dans le domaine des inves­
tissements. 

Le representant de Ia Turquie demande egale­
ment que le Conseil donne des instructions pour 
qu'un soin particulier soit apporte a l'etu~e des 
questions relatives aux regions encore peu de­
veloppees. La prosperite, un niveau de vie eleve 
et le plein emploi ne peuvent etre realises que si 
la demande et la capacite de production 
s'equilibrent. 

M. CoLBJOERNSEN (Norvegc) declare que le 
problerhe devant lequel se trouve le Conseil ne 
consiste pas a prodiguer des avis a des Gouverne­
ments qui en sont deja satures, mais a/ forml!ler 

.des conseils judicieux et pra:tiques. II espere que 
le retard apporte a la. constitution des so us­
commissions sera compense par le choix d' experts 
qualifies; les sous-commissions ne doivent pas 
assumer le travail des commissions; le represen­
tant de la Norvege espere qu'elles pourront etre 
constituees tres prochainement. 

M. Colbjomsen conteste !'assertion 'que· le 
probleme du developpement a souffert d'une 
conspiration du silep.ce. Le rapport du Secretaire 
general sur !'Organisation pour !'alimentation et 

4n 



-·-
that organization would give close attention to 
industrialization and development, and appen­
dix 2 of this report contained recommendations 
dealing with economic development. It should 
now be left to the specialized agencies to give 
detailed advice. The Commission itself should 
take care ,not to propose solutions of too gen.eral 
a nature but should, rather, make useful recom­
mendations for international action. 

Unfortunately, despite the impression created 
by the speeches of some of its members, neither 
the Council nor the General Assembly was in a 
position to finance development projects. The 
right to international credits had not yet been 
established. UNRRA wa8 being liquidated. The 
International Bank for Reconstruction and De­
velopment and the International Monetary Fund 
were not yet in a position ,to make adequately 
large loans. He was glad to note that the first 
report of the Commission was an attempt at 
methodical and scientific work. He recalled, in 
this connexion, that a memorandum dealing with 
the question of economic budget analysis had 
been submitted by the Chairman of the Corp­
mission, the representative of Norway. 

He thought that the problem of the moment 
was not that of full employment, but rather that 
of the shortage of man-power, with which he 
hoped that the Commission would deal. Despite 
the acute unemployment prevalent throughout 
the years 1930-1940, it had been found impos­
sible to take concerted international action for 
the solution of the problem. Such action was of 
course. subject to considerable delays. 

He approved of the Commission's report as a 
whole, but doubted whether it was wise to

1 
in­

struct the Preparatory Committee of the Inter­
national Trade Conference to give assistance to 
countries by means of technical advice on eco­
nomic development. The new organization 
should not be overloaded by the imposition of 
additional expenses in a field which was not en­
tirely within its competence. Technical advice 
should come through the Secretariat, 'the Com­
mission, and the sub-commission, and the more 
technical aSpect should be taken care of by the 
International Bank for Reconstruction and De­
velopment. It was important not to duplicate 
functions for this might seriously impair chances 
of establishing new specialized agencies. 

He hoped that the proposals included in the 
report would be referred to the Committee of 
the Council. He regarded the draft resolutions 
sl!bmitted by the United Kingdom and New 
Zealand as complementary and, since some of 
the provisions overlapped, they might be merged . 
into a single resolution. 

1 See Annex 5, page 252. 

l'agriculture1 porte .que l'OAA "etudi~ra !'indus­
trialisation et le developpement" et l'appendice 2 
a ce rapport contient des recommandations ayant 
trait au developpement economique. Il convient 
maintenant de laisser aux institutions specialisees 
le soin de donner des avis precis sur ces questions. 
La Commission elle-meme doit se garder de 
proposer des solutions trop generales et, 'par 
contre, faire des recommandations utiles en vue 
d'une action internationale. , 

Malheureusement le Conseil; contrairement a 
!'impression creee par les interventions de cer­
tains de ses membres, n'est pas en mesure de 
participer au financement .de pmjets de develop­
pement. Il n'y a pas encore de droit etabli 'a 
des credits internationaux. L'UNRRA est en 
voie de dissolution. La Banque internationale 
pour Ia reconstruction et Ia mise en valeur et le 
Fonds monetaire international ne sont pas encore 
en etat de consentir des prets d'importance suf­
fisante. Le representant de Ia Norvege constate 
avec plaisir que le premier rapport de Ia Com­
mission constitue une tentative de travail me­
thodique et scientifique. Il rappelle, a cet egard, 
le depot, par le President de la Commission, 
representant de Ia Norvege, d'un memoire 
traitant de la question de !'analyse budgetaire 
economique. 

Le representant de Ia Norvege estime que le 
problcme qu moment n'est pas celui du plein 
emploi, mais plutot celui de la penurie de main­
d'oeuvre, dont il espere que 'la Commission se 
preoccupera. Il rappelle que, malgre l'acuite du 
probleme du chomage pendant les annees 1930-
1940, il avait ete impossible de recou~ir, pour le 
resoudre, a une action internationale concertee. 
Une telle action est en effet suje~te a des lenteurs 
considerables. · 

M. Colbjornsen approuve le rapport de Ia 
Commission dans son ensemble. Il doute, toute­
fois, qu'il soit indique de charger Ia Commission 
preparatoire de Ia Conference internationale du 
commerce de donner une aide aux Etats au 
moyen d!avis techniques en matiere de develop­
pement economique. II ne faut point surcharger 

. la nouvelle organisation en lui imposant des de­
penses additionnelles en un domaine qui n'est 
pas exactement de S<J. competence. Les avis tech­
niques devraient plutot emaner du Secretariat, 
de Ia Commission des questions economiques et 
de sa sous-commission, !'aspect technique rele­
vant de Ia Banque intemationale pour Ia recon­
struction et Ia mise en valeur. Il est important 
d'eviter les doubles emplois qui risqueraient 
d'entraver la creation de nouvelles institutions 

-specialisees. 
Le representant de Ia Norvege espere que les 

propositions· que comporte le rapport feront 
l'objet d'un examen detaille par le Comite du 
Conseil. Il estime que les prqjets de resolutions 
deposes par le Royaume-Uni et Ia Nouvelle­
Zelande sont complementaires et, etant donne 
que certaines de leurs dispositions se repetent, 
pourraient fournir les elements d'une resolution . . . 
umque. 

1 Voir l'annexe 5, page 252. 

47 



In reply to the representative of Cuba, who 
had raised the question of alternates for mem­
bers of the permanent commissions, he said that 
the Norwegian delegation favoured the appoint­
ment of regular alternates, in addition to regu­
lar members, on the understanding that the 
United Nations would pay travel expenses for 
one representative only.' If permanent members 
were prevented from attending, they should be• 
represented by alternates competent to take part 
in the debates and not by mere observers. For 
the reasons indicated by the representative of 
Cuba, he agreed that such an arrangement 
should not apply to sub-commissions. 

The meeting rose at 6.15 p.m. 

FIFTY-EIGHTH MEETING 

·Held at Lake Success, New York, 
on Friday, 7 March 1947, at 11 a.m. 

President: Sir Ramaswami M UDALIAR (India). 
' ' ' 

14. Continuation of the discussion of the 
report of the Economic and Employ­
ment Commission 

Mr. BoRIS (France) stated that the French 
delegation agreed in substance with the recom­
mendations made by t~e Economic and Employ­
ment Commission. He had no particular obser­
vations to make regarding part V of the report. 
France considered that the international experts 
who would be called upon t<;> advise Govern­
ments should depend upon the Economic and 
Social Council itself. The French delegation also 
agreed fully with the United Kingdom resolu­
tion concerning part VI of the report, and in-

. terpreted the decla.rations made by the repre­
sentatives of India, Lebanon and New Zealand, 
as additions to the resolution itself. Although it 
was difficult to state definitely that one of the 
greatest present dangers in France was that of 
unemployment, the French Government, never­
theless, feared such unemployment in the future. 

Mr. Boris pointed out that nations which 
were obliged to reconstruct or modernize their 
industries as a result of war or under-industriali­
zation needed imports; in .order to obtain the 
latter, they had to export; if the exports of such 
countries were to decline, their entire recon­
struction programme would be jeopardized. 
While drastic unemployment might not prevail 
in under-industrialized countries, the purchasing 
power and standard of living of their population 
remained low. In addition, it was necessary to 
take into account the position of countries whose 
production remained low owing to under-indus­
trialization as a _result of war devastation. Both 
types of countries should be- given the oppor-

Enfin, en ce qui conceme la question des 
suppleants aux membres des commissions per­
manentes qu'a soulevee le representant de Cuba, 
M. Colbjomsen ·dec~a~e que,sa delegation est en 
faveur de la designation d'un supp~eant regulier 
en plus du membre titulaire, etant toutefois 
entendu que les Nations Unies ne paieraient les 
frais de deplacement que d'un seul representant. 
Les membres permanents, s'ils se trouyent em­
peches, doivent, en effet, pouvoir se faire 
remplacer par un suppleant competent pour 
participer aux debats et non par un simple 
observateur. Pour les raisons indiquees par le 
representant de .c~ba, cela ne saurait s'appliquer 
aux SOl:lS-COmmiSSIOnS. 

La seance est levee a 18 h. 15. 

CINQUANTE-HUITIEME SEANCE 

Tenue a Lake Success, New-York, 
le vendredi 7 mars 1947, a 11 heures. 

President : Sir Ramaswami M UDALIAR ( In de) . 

14. Suite de Ia discussion sur le rapport 
de Ia Commission des questions 
economiques et de l'emploi 

M. BoRIS (France) declare que Ia delegation 
fran~aise approuve, dans leur ensemble, les 
recommandations de la Commission des ques­
tions economiques et de l'emploi. II n'a aucune 
observation particuliere a formuler sur la cin­
quieme partie du rapport. La France estime que 
les experts internationaux qui seront appeles 
a donner des avis aux Gouvemements devraient 
dependre . du Conseil economique et social 
lui-meme. La delegation fran~aise se rallie 
egalement sans reserves a la resolution que le 
Royaume-Uni a presentee· a propos de la sixieme 
partie du rapport, et considere les declarations 
des representants de l'Inde, du Liban et de la 
Nouvelle-Zelande comme des addenda a cette 
resolution elle-meme. Bien qu'il soit difficile 
d'affirmer de fa~on categorique que l'un des 
plus grands dangers qui menacent actuellement 
la France soit celui du chomage, le Gouveme­
ment fran~ais craint cependant le chomage pour 
l'avenir. 

M. Boris souligne que les nations qui se 
trouvent obligees de reconstruire ou de moder­
niser leurs industries, en raison de la guerre ou 
de l'insuffisance de }'industrialisation, ont besoin 
d'importer; pour pouvoir importer, il leur faut 
exporter, et si leurs exportations viennent a 
diminuer, tout leur programme de reconstruc-

' tion sera compromis. Quoique le chomage puisse 
ne pas prendre de tres grandes proportions dans 
les pays·insuffisamment industrialises, le pouvoir 
d'achat et le niveau de vie de leurs populations 
demeurent bas. II est, de plus, necessaire de 
tenir compte de la situation des pays dont Ia 
production reste faible, par suite de l'insuffisance 
de leur industrialisation due aux ravages de la 

48 




